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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brilloca Limited

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Brilloca Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and
its Profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
Attention is drawn to:
i) Note no. 51 which describes the uncertainties and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the
Company’s operations and performance as assessed by the management. Further, due to
COVID-19 related lock-down/ restrictions, management could perform year end physical
verification of inventories at certain locations subsequent and near to year end. However,
we could not been able to physically observe the verification of inventories that was carried
out by the Management. Consequently, we have performed alternate procedures to audit the
existence of Inventory as per the guidance provided by in SA 501 “Audit Evidence - Specific
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Considerations for Selected Ttems” and have obtained sufficient audit evidence to issue our
unmodified opinion on these standalone financial statements.

Further, opinion of the management on the carrying value of assets and liabilities and
COVID-19 impact on the operations, as stated in the said note.

Our report is not modified in respect of above matter.

Information Other than the Standalone financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Ifbased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and




other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the financial year ended
31st March 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Other Matter
I) As stated in Note no. 47, financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 are
restated audited figures after giving impact of the scheme approved by the Hon’ble NCLT
Kolkata Bench on 26t june 2019 and effective from 1st April 2018 which has been
approved by Board of Directors .The restated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2019 are to be adopted by the shareholders.

Our opinion on above matter is not modified.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;




d)

g)

h)

il

iii.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken
onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

The company has paid/provided the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. (Refer note.45);

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 42 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian Accounting
Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.301051E

(N.K. Lodha)
Partner

WN"

Membership No. 85155 =
UDIN : 20085155AAAAC07676

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22-Jun-2020



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Brilloca
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, we
report that:

(i) @) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b

()

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management according to the
program of periodical verification in phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of
its fixed assets.

The company is not having any immovable property, hence reporting under this clause is
not applicable.

The inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by
the Management are reasonable in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its
business. The discrepancies noticed on such physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material.

According to the records and information and explanation made available to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), hence other parts of this clause are not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect
to the loans, investments, guarantees and security. (Read with Note n0.47)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section
73 to 76 of the Act and relevant rules, hence, we do not offer any comment on the same.
Further, we have been informed that no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any
other tribunal in this regard.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (i) of section 148 of the Act, for the business carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) According to the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, entry tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months
from the date th{ey become payable as at 31st March 2020.




(b) According Lo the records and information & explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of excise and value
added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute except for the following:

Name of Statute Nature of Period Amount Forum where matter is
Due involved pending
{In Lakhs)

Delhi Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax 2004-05 to 66.13 Additional Commissioner

1975 2010-11

Delhi Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax 2010- 2011 to 130.44 Additional Commissioner

1975 2014-15

CST Act Sales Tax 2013-14 32.48 Delhi Sales Tax Tribunal

Bihar Vat Act Sales Tax 2016-17 14.29 Additional Commissioner

CST Act CST 2014-15 45.77 The Appellate Dy. Comm.
Rural Division , Hyderabad.

MVAT Act MVAT 2007-08 3.28 Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax

CST Act CST 2010-11 14.23 Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax

CST Act CST 2011-12 16.79 Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax

CST Act CST 2012-13 2.03 Deputy Commissioner(State
Tax)

MVAT Act MVAT 2010-11 0.00 Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax

MVAT Act MVAT 2011-12 5.08 Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax

MVAT Act MVAT 2012-13 1.84 Deputy Commissioner {Sales
Tax), Mumbai

MVAT Act MVAT 2013-14 5.25 Deputy Commissioner (Sales
Tax), Mumbai

Telangana _CST VAT 2015-16 30.92 The Addl. Commissioner (ST)

CST Act, CST 2016-17 54.59 Special Commissioner, Delhi*

CST Act CST 2013-14 1.55 State Tax Officer

CST Act CST 2016-17 2.08 State Tax Officer

*Appeal was filed subsequent to balance Sheet date

(viii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or
financial institution or government during the year. The Company did not have any
outstanding debentures during the year.

(ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). On the basis of information and explanation given to us,
term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

r




x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based on the audit procedures performed and on the basis of information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on
our examination of the records of the company, the managerial remuneration has been
paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. (Refer Note no. 45).

On the basis of information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the said order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanations and records made available by the management
of the company and audit procedures performed, for the related party transactions
entered during the year, the company has complied with the provisions of section 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable. As explained and as per the records / details, the
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards. (Refer Note no. 45)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the
company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.301051E

N.K. Lodha
Partner
Membership No. 85155

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 22-Jun-2020



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Brilloca Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal finapcial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.301051E-

N.K. Lo
Partner
Membership No. 85155

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 22-Jun-2020



Brilloca Limited

Sta .dalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 (X in lakh)
Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 Match 2019
(Refer note 47)
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 10,926.93 8,101.28
(b) Capital work-in-progress 228.47 26.76
(c) Other intangible assets 5 108.56 116.32
(d) Financial assets
(@) Investments 6 75.34 75.34
(i) Loans 7 318.14 245.12
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 20 902.27 690.78
(f) Other non-current assets 8 143.71 164.88
Total non-cutrent assets 12,703.42 9,420.48
2 Curtent assets
(2) Inventories 9 17,553.31 17,124.43
(b) Financial assets
) Investments 10 8.31 8.23
(ii) Trade receivables 11 24,238.46 26,858.65
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 12 174.29 1,243.35
(vi) Other financial assets 13 1,560.23 10,324.43
(c) Other cutrent assets 14 5,707.31 4,672.91
Total current assets 49,241.91 60,232.00
Total assets 61,945.33 69,652.48
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 10.00 10.00
(b) Other equity 16 18,569.26 17,581.81
Total equity 18,579.26 17,591.81
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
) Borrowings 17 3,331.96 3,500.00
(i) Other financial liabilities 18 5,229.79 2,629.80
(b) Provisions 19 569.18 373.16
(c) Othet non-cutrent liabilities 21 131.18 43.47
Total non-current liabilities 9,262.11 6,546.43
Cutrent liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 15,545.82 14,898.25
(i) Trade payables 23
- Due to micro and small enterprise 1,332.63 1,554.00
- Due to othets 3,291.57 11,991.12
(iif) Other financial liabilities 24 10,939.74 9,865.16
(b) Other cutrent liabilities 25 2,414.34 2,745.13
(c) Income-tax liabilities (net) 26 554.13 4,283.99
(d) Provisions 27 25.73 176.59
Total current liabilities 34,103.96 45,514.24
Total liabilities 43,366.07 52,060.67
Total equity and liabilities 61,945.33 69,652.48




Notes 1 to 55 form an integral patt of these standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For Lodha & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:301051E

N.K. Lo

Partner

M. No. 85155

Place :\J @0 e
Date : 22nd June,2020

For and an hehalf of the Board of Directats

Szﬁman}r

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00053597

/ A
Q V
Paykfl M. Puri 8 \ ¢ % Sikka

Company Secretary f Financial Officer
ACS No.: 16068




Brilloca Limited

Standalone statement of Profit and Loss tor the year ended 31 March 2020 (R in lakh)
Note
Particulars Year ended 31Y;:;rf:‘l:d2€(;il9
31 March 2020 (Refer note 47 )
I  Revenue from operations 28 116,087.50 127,151.08
II  Other income 29 2,054.21 1,409.93
III Total income 118,141.71 128,561.01
IV Expenses
Purchascs of stock-in-trade 30 79,443.59 81,405.35
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 31 (410.15) 1,658.45
Employee benefits expense 32 12,747.85 11,446.54
Finance costs 33 2,012.23 2,028.04
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 2,412.55 1,412.49
Other expenscs 35 16,272.39 19,240.72
Total expenses 112,478.46 117,191.59
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax 5,663.25 11,369.42
VI Exceptional items - -
VII Profit before tax 5,663.25 11,369.42
VIII Tax expense 36
(1) Current tax 1,830.23 4,283.99
(2) Deferred tax (200.42) (292.17)
Total tax expense 1,629.81 3,991.82
IX Profit for the year 4,033.44 7,377.60
X  Other comprehensive income
() Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(@) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan (43.18) 55.64
(i) Income-tax relating to these items 11.07 (19.44)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (32.11) 36.20
XI Total comprehensive income for the year 4,001.33 7,413.80

XII Earnings per equity share (of ¥ 2/- each):

Basic and diluted 41 1,475.52




Notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

Int terms of out report attached.

For Lodha & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:301051E

Partner
M. No. 85155

Place ‘J Qv > =

Date : 22nd June,2020

Director
DIN: 00060931

Payal M. Puri

Company Secretary
ACS No.: 16068

on behalf of the Board of Directors

g

Smnan)
Chairman ard Managing Director

DIN. 00053597
/_C omeletSy

Chikf l*m'mcml Ofﬁcur




Brilloca Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

( in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
B MMarchizizy 01 March 2019
(Refer note 47 )
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 5,663.25 11,369.42
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 2,012.23 2,028.04
Interest income (13.03) (5.94)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (5.21) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22.93 19.84
Net (gain) arising on current investments 0.49) 0.61)
Sundry balances and Liabilities no longer required, written back (624.66) (1,077.32)
Provision for expected credit loss 591.14 358.67
Provision for doubtful advances - 15.15
Bad debts written off 3294 0.39
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,412.55 1,412.49
Net foreign exchange (gain) (16.80)
10,074.85 14,120.13
Mo ~ments in working capital:
(Increasc)/decrease in trade and other receivables 10,704.11 (16,786.09)
(Increase) /decrease in inventorics (428.88) 1,658.45
(Increase)/decrease in other asscts (1,181.33) (1,101.23)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other liabilities (7,955.41) 13,846.07
Increase/(decreasc) in provisions 45.16 25.93
1,183.65 (2,356.87)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 11,258.50 11,763.26
Income taxes paid (5,560.09) -
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 5,698.41 11,763.26
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments to acquire financial asscts - (34.19)
Proceeds on sale of financial assets 0.40 -
Interest received 13.03 594
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,084.01) (3,110.09)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and cquipment 42.94 -
Net Cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (2,027.64) (3,138.34)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings 10.00 =
Movement in short term borrowings (nct) 647.57 (10,750.05)
Principle payment of leased liability (355.61) -
Taxes on dividend paid (513.88)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company (2,500.00) -
Interest paid (2,027.91) (2,057.42)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (4,739.83) (12,807.47)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents: (1,069.06) (4,182.55)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,243.35 0.69
Cash and cash equivalents on account of demerger - 5,425.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 174.29 1,243.35
The movement in liabilities from financing activities:
i As at Non-cash flow changes - Other As at
Particulars 315t March, 2019 Cash flow i 31st March, 2020
Foreign exchange Other
Long term borrowings 3,500.00 10.00 - - 3,510.00
Short term borrowings 14,898.25 647.57 - - 15,545.82
Total liabilities from financing activities 18,398.25 657.57 - - 19,055.82
s As at Non-cash flow changes - Other As at
Particulars 315t March, 2018 Cash flow " 315t March, 2019
Foreign exchange Other*
Long teom borrowings - - - 3,500.00 3,500.00
Short term borrowings - (10,750.05) - 25,648.30 14,898.25
Total liabilities from financing activities - (10,750.05) - 29,148.30 18,398.25

*Transfer due to Scheme as on 1 April, 2018 (Refer note 47)

Notes:-
1. The Scheme is cash neutral, hence cash ncutral items have not been considered/disclosed in this statement (read with note 47 and note 12)

2. Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary.
3. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard(Ind As 7) statement of Cash flows.



Notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
In (oo of oue ceport attached. Fuor and on behalf of the Buard of Dircclote

For Lodha & Co
Chartered Accountants Diteror
Firm Registration No.:301051E DIN: 00060931

/ r;’\fJ /,,—Q.Dw\o\ (\i

N.K. Lodha Payal M. Puri
Partner Company Secretary andeep Sikka
M. No. 85155 ACS No.: 16068 Chief Financial Officer

PlaceN oA

Date : 22nd June, 2020
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Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Corporate information

Brilloca Limited (the 'Company’) is a public limited company incorporated in India under the

Companies Act 2013. The registered office of the Company is situated in Kolkata and the corporate

office is in Gurugram. The Company is into the business of selling and trading of Building

products. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Somany Home Innovation Limited..

2. Application of new and revised Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”)
All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministty of Corporate Affairs under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) tll the standalone financial statements

are authorized have been considered in preparing these standalone financial statements.

2.1 Recent accounting pronouncements

A. Application of New Accounting Pronouncements
The Company applied for the first-time amendments to the following standards from 1st April

2019.

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Ind AS 116, Leases:

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied
to its Lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective
method (simplified approach) . On transition date i.e. 1t April 2019 , the Company
has recognised Right of Use Assets (ROU) and equivalent lease liability. Accordingly,
the comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements
and concluded that there is no significant impact.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where
the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations whete the entity
pays 2 tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation
authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation
authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with
Ind AS 12.. Further, Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) is not applicable with effective
from April 1, 2020, , hence Income tax consequences telated to DDT no more
payable by the Company from financial year 2020-21.




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

(iv)  Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs:

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use o sale, that borrowing becomes patt of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. The Company’s existing policy is in line with these amendments
and there is no effect on its Financial Statements.

B. Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards. Till the date of approval of this financial statements there is no such notification which
is made applicable from 1% April, 2020.

3. Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
3.1 Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind
AS notified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accordingly, the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 are prepared complying applicable Ind AS.

The standalone financial statement of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
(including comparatives) were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors on 22t
June,2020

3.2 Historical cost convention

These standalone financial statements have been prepated on a historical cost convention except
where certain financial assets and liabilities have been measured at fair value.

3.3 Business combinations

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at
their carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to
harmonise accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share
capital of transferor entity or business is recognised as capital reserve under equity.

3.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits atising from a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

3.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or
services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods ot setvices.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. Revenue is
recognized net of sales reductions such as discounts and sales incentives granted. This variable

consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. \ - ;"TL :
e oLy
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Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

Sale of products:

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the Company has transfetred control of
the goods to the buyer and the buyer obtains the benefits from the goods, the potential cash flows
and the amount of revenue (the transaction price) can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled to in exchange fot the goods.

Sales-related warranties associated with the goods are integral to sales price and cannot be
purchased separately, hence they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Company accounts for warranties in accordance with
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Renderipzg of services:

Revenue from services is recognized over time by measuring progress towards satisfaction of
performance obligation for the services rendered.

Interest and dividends
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividends are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

3.6 Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases w.e.f. 1st April, 2019, using the modified
retrospective method (simplified approach). The Company has applied the standard to its lease
contracts existing on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). The company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the future lease payments as on initial application date of
standard ie. 1% Aprl 2019 and Right of Use Assets (ROU) with cotresponding amount.
Accordingly, previous petiod information has not been restated and no adjustment in retained
earnings has been made.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

@ The contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the petiod of the lease and

(iif) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these
short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or ptior to the commencement date of the

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are-subsequently measure ét(h

'(11-‘ Lok
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Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shotter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease ot, if not readily detetminable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect intetest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease
term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement

normally also adjusts the leased assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

3.7 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Initial recognition

The Company's standalone financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are tecorded on initial recognition in the

functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Measurement at the balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date are
restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Treatment of exchange difference

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance
sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income or
expenses in the period in which they arise. '

3.8 Borrowing costs

Botrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised duting the period of time that is necessary to complete and

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the petiod in which they are incurre\d and reported in

finance cost.




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

3.9 Employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, pension fund, gratuity and compensated absences.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund and pension fund is considered as defined
contribution plan and is charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution
required to be made and when setvices are rendered by the employees. The Company has no legal
or constructive obligation to pay contribution in addition to its fixed contribution. The interest rate
payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared
by the Central Government under Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952 and
short fall, if any, shall be made good by the company.

In respect of certain employees contributions are made to a trust administrated by the
Company/employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
'the Projected Unit Credit method', with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised past setvice cost.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service. These benefits include petformance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders

the related service. The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that
increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are allowed to catried forward over a petiod in excess of 12 months

after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a




Btilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the standalone financial
statcmcnts for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date out of
which the obligations are expected to be settled.

3.10Taxation
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss comptises the sum of deferred tax and
cutrent tax not recogtitsed in other comprehensive income ot directly in equity.

Current tax

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comptise those obligations to, ot claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date.
Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements.
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases.

Defertred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or
deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed
based on the Company’s forecast of future opening results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full, although Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, specifies
limited exemptions.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense
in the statement of profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income (such as the revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which case the
related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

3.11 Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between purchase
of raw materials and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operation cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current
and non-cuttrent.

3.12 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or
as incurred. Expenditure for warranties is recognised when the Company incurs an obligation,
which is usually when the related goods are sold.

3.13(a) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their original cost including freight, dut1es taxes

other incidental expenses relating to acquisition and installation.
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Significant accounting policics and other cxplanatoty information to the standalonc financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

The carrying amount of assets, including those assets that ate not yet available for use, ate reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impaitment. If any such
indication exists, recoverable amount of asset is determined. An impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss whenever the cartying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of asset does
not exceed the net book value that would have been determined if no impaitment loss had been
recognised.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company recognises the new part and is depreciated accordingly. Further, when major
overhauling/ repair are performed, the cost associated with this is capitalised, if the recognition
critetia are satisfied, and is then depreciated over the remaining useful life of asset or over the
period of next overhauling due, whichever is earlier. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propetty, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses (if any). Cost

related to technical assistance for new projects are capitalized.

(c) Capital work-in-progress .

Expenditure incurred during the period of construction, including all direct and indirect expenses,
incidental and related to construction, is catried forward and on completion, the costs ate allocated
to the respective property, plant and equipment. Capital work-in-progress includes capital
inventory.

3.14 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation 1s charged on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method at rates prescribed in
Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013 and is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Freehold
land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful life of the items of property, plant and equipment ate as follows:

Asset class _ | Useful life |
_Property, plant and equipment : _ 1
Plant and machinery 10-15 years

Furniture and fixtures - 10 years .
| ifﬁce equipment 5 years B
. Computer | 3-6 years
| Vehicles | 8 years*

]
| | |

| Intangible assets

| Software 6 years

* Vehicles are being depreciated using written down value method as per life of 8 years men
in Schedule II of the Act. e




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and othet explanatoty information to the standalone financial
statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

3.15 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable and impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
highet of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets
(cash generating units). If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount subject to a2 maximum of depreciated historical cost and the same is
accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalent are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.17 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wheteby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.

3.18 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventoties
comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses.

3.19Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognised in the standalone financial statements where there exists a present
obligation as a result of a past event, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources would be necessitated in order to settle the obligation. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best estimates. Contingent
liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes unless the outflow of resources is
considered to be remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone
financial statements.

3.20 Equity, teserves and dividend payments
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Retained earnings include current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with ownets
of the Company are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distribution payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the
dividends have been approved in a general meeting priot to the reporting date.

3.21Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pertiod is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,

without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings or loss per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.22  Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as investments in mutual funds, investment in
certain equity shares etc. at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the
measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.23  Financial insttuments

L. Financial assets

a. Initial recognition and measutement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in case of financial assets not recorded

at fair value through profit or loss transaction costs that are attributable to the 1cqum1tlon of the
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial
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recognition. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit ot loss are
expensed in statement of profit and loss.

b. Subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in ordet to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through statement of profit and loss.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with
its assets measured at amortised cost and assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 37 details how the Company determines whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

d. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- The Company has transferred the right to teceive cash flows from the financial assets or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity transfets the financial asset, it evaluates the extent to which it retains the risk and
rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. If the entity transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the entity shall derecognise the financial asset and
recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the
transfer. If the entity retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the entity shall continue to recognise the financial asset.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of the ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company
has not retained control of the financial assets. Where the Company tetains control of the financial
assets, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.
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I1. Financial liabilities

a. Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of borrowings and payabiles,
net of directly attributable cost.

Financial kabilities are subsequently carried at amotrtized cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. Changes in the
amortsed value of liability are recotded as finance cost.

IIL. Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The
methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted
market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and
such value may vary from actual realization on future date.

IV. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

Intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.24  Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest
rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately unless the detivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature
of the hedged item.

3.25  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements trequites management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the teported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 2 matetial
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets ot liabilities affected in future petiods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key soutces of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were

prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, howeve
3
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Significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (contd.)

change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(1) Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
such obligation are determined using actuatial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, 2 defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

(i) Estitnation of current tax and deferred tax

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income - taxes and deferred
tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead

to adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone financial statements.

(iif) Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological
obsolescence that may change the utility of certain property, plant and equipment.

(iv) Impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated itrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is recognised based
on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

(v) Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management
bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that
case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date (refer
note 37).
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Rrilloca Timited
Significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 5 - Other intangible assets

(R in lakh)

Description of assets Computer "Total
software

I. Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2018 = =
Transfer due to Scheme as on 1 April, 2018 (Refer note 47) 353.70 353.70
Balance as at 1 April 2018 353.70 353.70
Additions 19.86 19.86
Disposals/adjustment " "
Balance as at 31 March 2019 373.56 373.56
Additions 25.97 25.97
Disposals/adjustment 91.51 91.51
Balance as at 31 March 2020 491.04 491.04
I1. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - -
Transfer due to Scheme as on 1 April, 2018 (Refer note 47) 193.39 193.39
Balance as at 1 April 2018 193.39 193.39
Amortisation charge for the year 63.85 63.85
Disposals/adjustment & =
Balance as at 31 March 2019 257.24 257.24
Amortisation charge for the year 53.09 53.09
Disposals/adjustment 72.15 72.15
Balance as at 31 March 2020 382.48 382.48
Net block (I-II)
Balance as on 31 March 2020 108.56 108.56
Balance as on 31 March 2019 116.32 116.32

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Signiticaul accounting policies and other explanatury lufurmaton  the Staudalone flnancial stalewents as at and for the year ended

31 March 2020

Note 6 - Non current investments*®

(X in lakh)

Particul As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

arfieniacs Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investments (fully paid-up) (At cost)
Halis International Limited, Mauritius (Equity share, face value USD 1 1705000 782.50 1,705,000 782.50
each)
Less : Provision for impairment of investments (782.50) - (782.50) -
Alchemy International Cooperative U.A., Netherlands (Euro 180) 180 0.12 180 0.12
Halis Interpational Limited, Mauritius (Preference Share, face value 2036000 1,176.05 2036000 1,176.05
USD 1 each) ‘
Less : Provision for impairment of investments (1,100.83) 75.22 (1,100.83) 75.22
Unquoted investments 75.34 75.34
Total investments carried at cost 75.34 75.34
* Transfer due to Scheme of arrangement as on 1 April, 2018 (Refer note 47)
Other disclosures |
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 75.34 75.34

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at

and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 7 - Non-cutrent financial assets - loans

R in lakh)

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(unsecured and considered good)

Secutity deposits 318.14 24512
318.14 245.12
Note 8 - Other non-cutrent assets
R in lakh)
As at As at

Particulars

31 Match 2020 31 March 2019

(unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances

Considered doubtful

Less : Provision for doubtful advances
Balances with government authorities

<This space has been intentionally kft blank>

20.26 49.67

15.15 15.15
(15.15) (15.15)
123.45 115.21
143.71 164.88




Brilloca Limited
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 9 - Inventoties
R in lakh)
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars

(As taken and certified by the management, valued at cost ot net realisable value)

Stock-in-trade of goods acquired for trading 17,534.58 17,124.43
Stores and spares 18.73 =

17,553.31 17,124.43
Notes

Refer note 22 for information on inventory pledged as security by the Company.




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2020

Note 10 - Current investments

(X in lakh)
Particulars As at Bl March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Units Amount Units Amount
Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Quoted investments
HDF¥C Liquid Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 213.999 8.31 224.764 8.23
213.999 8.31 224.764 8.23
Other disclosutes
Aggregate amount of quoted investments- at cost 7.24 7.60
Aggregate amount of quoted investments- at market value 8.31 8.23

<This space has been intentionally left blank>




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 11 - Trade teceivables

R in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured, considered good 1,447.40 1,552.14
Unsecuted, considered good 22.791.05 25,306.51
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 2,580.62 1,989.49
26,819.08 28,848.14
Less: Provision for impairment/Expected credit loss 2,580.62 1,989.49
24,238.46 26,858.65
Movement in the allowance fot provision for impairment/Expected credit loss  in lakh)
Patticulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 1,989.49 -
Transfer under the Scheme as on 1 Aptil, 2018 (Refer note 47) - 1,492.31
Expected credit losses provided for during the year (Refer note 35) 591.14 498.17
Amounts written back during the year (net) (0.01) (0.99)
2,580.62 1,989.49

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 12 - Cash and cash equivalents
(X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 Matrch 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks 67.88 250.48
Cheques, drafts on hand 50.60 992.87
Cash in hand 3.47 -
Remittance in transit 52.34 :
174.29 1,243.35

Thete ate no tepatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the
reporting petiod and prior petiods. - 3

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 13 - Current financial assets - Other financial assets
(R in lakh)
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 Match 2019

Particulars

(unsecured and considered good)
Other receivable * 1,560.23 10,324.43

1,560.23 10,324.43

* Including of HSIL Limited of X 955.48 Lakh (previous year 9768.18 lakh) post implementation of
Scheme (Refer note 47)

Note 14 - Other current assets
(R in lakh)
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars

(unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid expenses 371.74 192.62
Balances with government authorities 3,053.32 2,482.08
Others

- Advance to suppliers 1,152.96 307.71
Considered doubtful 443 4.43
less : Provision against Advance to Vendors (4.43) (4.43)

- Employee advances 55.29 12.03

- Other cutrrent assets 1,074.00 1,678.47

5,707.31 4,672.91

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2020

Note 15 - Cquity shate capital

Particulars As at As at
31 Match 2020 31 March 2019
No. of shares R inlakh) No. ofshares (T in lakh)
Authorised:
Equity shares of ¥ 2 each 500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00
Issued:
Equity shares of % 2 each 500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00
Subscribed and fully paid:
Equity shares of ¥ 2 each 500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00
500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00
Reconciliation of share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Particulats As at As at
31 Matzch 2020 31 March 2019
Number R in lakh) Number R in lakh)
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00
Add: Shares issued duting the year - - - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 500,000 10.00 500,000 10.00

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having par value of T 2 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after settling of all liabilities. The disttibution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

List of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity share capital of the Company as at: *

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number % of holding Number % of holding
Somany Home Innovation Limited 500,000 100.00 500,000 100.00

¥ Information is furnished as per shareholder register as at the year end.

There are no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares
and bought back duting the last 5 years.

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 16- Other equity (X in lakh)
Reserves and surplus . P rehensive
Particulars i Total
: Securities Premium  General Retained  Actuarial gain / (loss)
Account Rescrve Earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2018 - - (1.22) = (1.22)
Transfer due to Scheme (Refer note 47) 3,913.05 1,323.86 4,928.41 3.91 10,169.23

Balance as on 1st April 2018 3,913.05 1,323.86 4,927.19 3.91 10,168.01

Profit for the year - - 7,377.60 = 7,371.60

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax) - - 36.20 36.20

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 7,377.60 36.20 7,413.80

Balance as at 31 March 2019 3,913.05 1,323.86  12,304.79 40.11 17,581.81

Profit for the year : 4,033.44 4,033.44

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax) (32.11) (32.11)
Paymeat of dividend (including dividend distribution tax) (Refer note 54) (3,013.88) (3,013.88)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,019.56 (32.11) 987.45

Balzr:e as at 31 March 2020 3,913.05 1,323.86 13,324.35 8.00 18,569.26

Nature and purpose of other reserve:

1. Sccuritics premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The same is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
2. Reserves/ Surplus as on 01st April, 2018 has been transferred pursuant to Scheme of arrangement.

3. General reserves was created by transferring certain amount out of profits at the time of distribution of dividend in the past.

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and

for the year ended 31 Match 2020

Note 17 - Non cutrent financial liabilities - Borrowings

R in lakh)

Particulars

As at As at.
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Measured at amortised cost

Secured:
Tetm loan from bank:
Rupee loan 3,500.00 3,500.00
Tetrm loans from financial institution:
Vehicle loan 10.00 -
3,510.00 3,500.00
Less: Cuttent maturities of long term borrowing (Note 24) 178.04 =
3,331.96 3,500.00
Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows: (X in lakh)
P:iticulars Currency Year of Carrying Carrying

maturity amount as at amount as at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Secured loan from bank - rupee loans
Secured loan from financial institution - rupee loans

Note:

k4 2026-27
4 2022-23

3,500.00 3,500.00
10.00 -

Note:-1. Loan is secured by First pari-passu Charge on Movable Fixed Assets (PPE) of the company.

Note:-2. The interest rate for the above rupee term loans from bank is based on 1 year MCLR + 08bps.

Note:-3 Repayable in 14 half yearly instalments starting from June 2020 to December 2026.

Note:-4. Vehicle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle thus purchased, repayable in 36 equal
mr:2 nthly instalments starting from 1st April 2020 having interest rate 8.99% p.a.

<This space has been intentionally keft blank>
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 18 - Non-current financial liabilities - Other financial liabilities
® in lakh)
Particulats As at As at
31 Match 2020 31 Match 2019

Trade deposits 2,797.38 2,629.80
Lease liability (Refer note 46) 2,432.41 -
5,229.79 2,629.80

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 19 - Non-cutrent liabilities - Provisions R in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provision for employee benefits
Long-term employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences 321.06 290.01
Provision for long service award 61.48 -
Provision for warranty 186.64 83.15
569.18 373.16
Details of movement in provision for warranty (including current portion) ( in lakh)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2018 -
Transfer due to Scheme as on 1 April, 2018 (Refer note 47) 353.69
Additional provisions recognised (included in Other expenses) 0.79
Utilised duting the year (109.94)
244.54
Less: Curtent liability (refer note 27) 161.39
Balance as at 31 March 2019 83.15
Balance as at 1 April 2019 - 244.54
Additional provisions recognised (included in Other expenses) 65.00
Utilised duting the year (122.91)
- 186.64

Less: Current liability (Refer note 27) g =
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 186.64

Watranty claims:

The provision for warranty claims represent the present value of best estimate of the futute outflow of
economic benefits that will be required uader the Company obligations for watranties under the local sale
of goods. The estimate has been made based on historical watranty trends and may vary as 2 tesult of new
materials, altered manufacturing process or other events. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for
watranties were based on curent sales levels and current information available about returns based on
watranty petiod of certain products up to 12 years.

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 20 - Deferred tax liabilities (net) ® in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Deferred tax liability arising on account of

Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment - 98.48
= 98.48

Deierred tax asset arising on account of
Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 80.09 -
Provision for doubtful debts and loans and advances 66243 702.05
Provision for employce bencfits 86.78 87.21
Others 72.97

902.27 789.26
Deferred tax assets (net) (902.27) (690.78)
Deferred tax assets (net) in relation to: ® in lakh)
Particulars Recognised in

As at Recognised in other As at
1 April 2019 statement of  comprehensive 31 March 2020
profit and loss income
Deferred tax liability arising on account of
Ditterence between book balance and tax balance of 98.48 (178.57) - (80.09)
property, plant and equipment
Sub total 98.48 (178.57) - (80.09)
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Provision for doubtful debts and loans and advances 702.05 (39.62) - 662.43
Provision for employee benefits 87.21 (11.50) 11.07 86.78
Others 72.97 - 72.97
Sub total 789.26 21.85 11.07 822.18
Net deferred tax assets (690.78) (200.42) 11.07) (902.27)
Deferred tax assets (net) in relation to: ® in lakh)
Particulars Transfer due to ised i Recognised in
As at Scheme as on 1st Recognised in other As at
1April2018  April2018 (Refer Seiementof o orchensive  31March 2019
note 47) profitand loss income

Deferred tax liability arising on account of
Difference between book balance and tax balance of - 183.87 (85.39) - 98.48
property, plant and equipment
Sub total - 183.87 (85.39) - 98.48
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Investments at fair value through OCI - - - - -
Provision for doubtful debts and loans and advances - 523.02 179.03 - 702.05
Provision for employee benefits - 78.90 27.75 (19.44) 87.21
Sub total - 601.92 206.78 (19.44) 789.26

Net deferred tax assets - (418.05) (292.17) 19.44 (690.78)
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 21 - Other non-current liabilities
R in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Employee related payables 131.18 43.47

131.18 43.47

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 22 - Cutrent financial liabilities - Botrowings
® in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Secured borrowings

From banks _
Cash credit - loans repayable on demand 831.82 598.25
Wotking capital demand loan 14,714.00 14,300.00

15,545.82 14,898.25

Details of security and term of repayment of each type of borrowing:

Secured botrowings
Cash credit facilities :

a) Cash credit facilities from banks is repayable on demand and is secured by hypothecation of all current assets
including stocks and book debts, present and future
Short term loan facilities :

b) Working capital demand loan from banks repayable within 20 days to 90 days from disbursement and is
secuted by hypothecation of all current assets including stocks and book debts, present and future.

c) The interest rate for the above short term borrowings varies from 7.60% p.a. to 9.75% p.a.

<This space has been intentionally keft blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2020

Note 23 - Trade payables

R in lakh)
Particulats As at As at
31 Match 2020 31 March 2019

-total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1,332.63 1,554.00
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises * 3,291.57 11,991.12
Trade payable 4,624.20 13,545.12

* Including of HSIL Limited of % 1691.06 Lakh (previous year 8889.29 lakh) post implementation of Scheme (Refer note 47)

Disclosure undet MSME Act, 2006

Dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED),
2006 to the extent identified and information available with the Company pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act MSMED), 2006, details as certified by the management are mentioned below:

® in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 302.90 1,554.00
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 86.07 60.52
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED
Act, 20006, along with the amount of the payment made to the Nil Nil
suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day . .
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Nil Nil
MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 86.07 60.52
Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance of a Nil Nil
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,
2006.

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policics and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 24 - Current financial liabilities - Other financial liabilities

(R in lakh)
As at As at
Particulars 31March 2020 31 March 2019
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 17) 178.04 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 57.71 73.39
Earnest money deposits 2.95 2.95
Security deposits/retention money payable 4.92 0.70
Others
Towards capital creditors : 77.58 42.69
Employee related payables 2,373.91 1,666.30
Towards expenses payable * 966.50 2,068.52
Commission payable to ditectots 59.94 -
Gratuity payable (net of obligation) 127.40 11.12
Lease liability (Refer note 46) 417.78 .
Other payables 6,673.01 5,999.49
10,939.74 9,865.16

* Including of HSIL Limited of ¥ Nil Lakh (previous year 892.35 lakh) post implementation of Scheme (Refet note 47)

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for
the ycar ended 31 Match 2020

Note 25 - Other current liabilities

R in lakh)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advances recetved from customers 594.94 642.03
Employee related payables - 64.07
Payable towards statutory dues 1,819.40 1,269.10
Other payables - 769.93
2,414.34 2,745.13
Note 26 - Provision for income tax (net)
(R in lakh)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for Income tax opening 4,283.99 -
Provision for the year 1,830.23 4,283.99
6,114.22 4,283.99
Less: Advance tax paid * 5,560.09 -
554.13 4,283.99

* Including advance tax of X 1100 Lakh (previous year Nil lakh) paid by HSIL Limited and endorsed in favour of the Company
post implementation of Scheme (Refer note 47)
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for

the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 27 - Current liabilities - Provisions ® in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 Match 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for employee benefits
Long-term employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 17.60 15.20
Provision for long setvice award 8.13 :
Provision for watranty - 161.39
25.73 176.59

Warranty claims:

The provision for wartanty claims reptesent the present value of best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that
will be required under the Company obligations for watranties under the local sale of goods. The estimate has been made based
on historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of new matetials, altered manufacturing process ot other events.
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on current sales levels and curtent information available

about returns based on warranty period of certain products up to 12 years.
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Signiticant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and

for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 28 - Revenue from operations

(X in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of goods 114,656.73 124,073.36
Sale from rendering of services 13.97 10.08
Other operating revenue @ 1,416.80 3,067.64
116,087.50 127,151.08
Segment wise revenue information
a) Building Products 116,087.50 127,151.08
b) Others - -
Total 116,087.50 127,151.08
Total income from operations 116,087.50 127,151.08
ii) Unsatisfied Performance Obligation
Aggregated amount of Transaction Price allocated to the contracts
i) Sale of Goods 594.94 642.03

iii) Reconciliation of contract price vis a vis revenue recognised in profit and loss statement is as follows:-

Contract Price

a) Sale of goods & services 189,319.05 196,247.97
b) Sale of Service 13.97 10.08
¢) Other operating revenue 1,416.80 3,067.64
Adjustment:-
Discount/Rebate 74,662.32 72,174.61
Revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss account 116,087.50 127,151.08
@ Other operating revenues comprise of:
Sundry balances and liabilitics no longer required, written back 624.66 1,077.32
Excess provision of doubtful debts written back - 139.50
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations 132.23 102.86
Insurance claims received 39.16 143.59
Scrap sales 3775 525.88
Miscellaneous receipts 583.00 1,078.49
1,416.80 3,067.64
Note 29 - Other income
® in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest income on financial assets 13.03 5.94
Rental income 0.02 -
Profit on sale of current investments (net) 0.01 0.05
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 5.21 -
Gain arising on financials instruments designated as at FVTPL (net) 0.48 0.56
Management fee 1,993.46 1,349.90
Miscellaneous income 42.00

2,054.21
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Note 30 - Purchases of traded goods

(R in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Match 2020 31 March 2019
Sanitarywate and other products(net) 79,443.59 81,405.35
79,443.59 81,405.35
Note 31 - Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
(X in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inventoties at the end of the yeat:
Stock-in-trade 17,534.58 17,124.43
17,534.58 17,124.43
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade 17,124.43 -
Stock-in-trade transferred due to Scheme (Refer note 47) - 18,782.88
17,124.43 18,782.88
Changes in inventoties of stock-in-trade (410.15) 1,658.45
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2020

Note 32 - Employee benefits expense

(R in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mazch 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 11,676.66 10,640.45
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 525.41 377.80
Staff welfare expenses 545,78 428.29
12,747.85 11,446.54
Note 33 - Finance cost
(R in lakh)
Paiiiculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest expense on financial liabilities 1,787.24 2,028.04
Interest on lease liability (Refer note 46) 22499 -
2,012.23 2,028.04
Note 34 - Depreciation and amortisation
(X in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation and amortisation of Property, plant and 1,830.98 1,348.64
equ..pment (Refer note 4)
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Refer note 5) 53.09 63.85
Depreciation on right to use - Building (Refer note 4) 528.48 -
2,412.55 1,412.49
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the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 35 - Other expenses

(® in lakh)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

' 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Power and fuel 3.57 5.67
Consumption of stores and spares 12.59 45.55
Consumption of packing material 312.42 358.35

Repairs and maintenance:

Buildings 12.05 10.31
Plant and machinery 2.43 16.29
Others 381.67 123.77
Rent (including lease charges) 963.14 1,561.81
Rates and taxes 9.00 20.10
Directors sitting fees 0.50 -
Insurance 182.92 22.35
Travelling and conveyance 2,472.83 2,076.28
Commmission on sales 31843 380.76
Freight and forwarding charges 74.39 133.47
Advertisement and publicity 3,417.89 5,627.28
Transporttation and forwarding 4,754.66 5,098.06
Sales promotion expenses * 1,063.34 1,291.11
Other selling expenses 111.46 105.99
Provision for expected credit loss (Refer note 11) 591.14 498.17
Provision for doubtful advances/debts - 15.15
Bad debts written off 32.94 0.39
Loss on sale of propetty, plant and equipment 22.93 19.84
Muiiagement fees 115.00 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,417.09 1,830.02
16,272.39 19,240.72

* Inclusive of watranty expenses
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Significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31 Match 2020

Note 36 Current tax and deferred tax

(a) Income tax expense through profit and loss R in lakh)
Particulars For the yeat ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax:
Current income tax charge (including Minimum alternate tax) 1,830.23 4,283.99
1,830.23 4,283.99

Def rred tax:
In respect of current year origination and reversal of (200.42) (292.17)
temporary differences

Total tax expense recognised in profit and loss account 1,629.81 3,991.82
(b) Income tax on other comprehensive income : R in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Match 2020 31 March 2019
Curtent tax
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 11.07 (19.44)
11.07 19.44)

(c) Numerical reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate :
The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate
of the Company at 25.168% (31 March 2019: 34.944%) and the reported tax expense in the statement of profit and loss are as

follows:
R in lakh)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 Mazrch 2019
Profit / (loss) before tax 5,663.25 11,369.42
Domestic tax rate for the Company 25.168% 34.944%
Laicit statutoty enacted income tax for the Company 1,425.33 3,972.93
Tax effect of :
- Non deductible expenses 139.23 21.15
- Tax rate difference 67.52 -
Others (2.27) (2.26)
Income-tax recognised in statement of profit and loss 1,629.81 3,991.82

(d) Adoption of new tax rate- The Company has decided to exercise the option permitted under section 115 BAA of the income
tax Act ,1961 as introduced by the taxation laws (amendment ordinance, 2019 from the current financials year) accordingly the
provision for income tax and deferred tax balances have been recorded/re-measured using the new tax rate and the resultant
impact have been recognised in the current periods audited financial results.

(e) There is no temporary differences associated with investment in subsidiaries.
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Note - 37 Financial instruments and risk review
Capital inanagement

The Company manages its capital to be able to continuc as a going concern while maximising the returns to sharcholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balancc. T'he
capital structure consists of debt which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 17 and 22; cash and cash cquivalents as disclosed in note 12 and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained carnings as disclosed in the Statement of changes in cquity. For the purpose of caleulating gearing
ratio, debt is defined as non current and current borrowings (excluding derivatives). guity includes all capital and reserves of the Company attributable to equity holders of the
Company. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The Board reviews the capital structure and cost of capital on an annual basis but has not set
specific targets for gearing ratios. "The risks associated with cach class of capital are also considered as part of the risk reviews presented to the Board of Directors,

The following table summarises the capital of the Company (X in lakh)
Note As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Equity 18,579.26 17,591.81
qumd assets (cash and cash equivalent and current 182.60 1,251.58
investments) (a)
Current borrowings 22 15,545.82 14,808.25
Non- current borrowings 17 & 18 3,331.96 3,500.00
Current maturitics of non current borrowings 24 178.04 -
Total debt (b) 19,055.82 18,398.25
Net debt [c = (b) - (a)] 18,873.22 17,146.67
Total capital (equity + net debt) 37,452.48 34,738.48
Gearing ratio
Debt to cquity 103", 105"
Nect debt to cquity ratio 102"y 97"«
Categories of financial instruments
Categories of financial assets/ (liabilities) (% in lakh)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Notes Carrying Gai.n/ (loss) to Gain/ (l‘oss) to Carrying value Gai.n/ (loss) to Gain/ (lf)ss) to
value income equity income equity

Financial assets measured at amortised costs
Tradc receivable 11 24,238.46 - - 26,858.65 -
Loans 7 318.14 - = 245.12 = .
Other financtal asscts 13 1,560.23 - - 10,324.43 - =
Cash and bank balances 12 174.29 . 1,243.35 -
Investments 6, 10 75.34 - - 75.34 -
Total Financial assets measured at amortised costs 26,366.46 E = 38,746.89 -
Financial asscts measured at fair value
Investments 6, 10 8.31 0.48 - 8.23 .50
Derivative contracts 13 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value 8.31 0.48 - 8.23 0.56
Total financial assets 26,374.77 0.48 - 38,755.12 0.56
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Current payables 22,23, 24 31,109.76 - - 38,308.53 - -
Non-current payables 18 5,229.79 - - 2,629.80 - -
Non-current borrowings 17 3.331.96 - - 3,500.00 - -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 39,671.51 - - 44,438.33 -
Total financial assets/(liabilities) (13,296.74) 0.48 - (5,683.21) 0.56

Financial risk management objective
The Company is exposed to varous risks in rclation to financial instruments. The main types of dsks are markcet sk, credit fsk and liquidity dsk. The Company is not engaged in
speculative treasury activities but sceks to manage risk and optimisc interest and commodity pricing through proven financial instruments.

‘The usc of any dervative is approved by the management, which provide guidelines on the acceptable levels of interest rate risk, credit dsk, forcign exchange dsk and liquidity risk and
the range of hedging requirement against these risks.




Brilloca Limited
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (o the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note - 37 Financial instruments and risk review (contd.)

Ciedit risk:
Credit risk is the risk that 2 couater party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The Compaay is exposed to credit
risk for receivables, cash and cash cquivalents, short term investments, financial guarantee and denvative financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments

The «.ompany considers factoss such as track record, size of insttution, market reputation and service standard to sclect the banks with which deposits arc maintained. Generally the
balances arc maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not maintain significant deposit balances other than thosc
required for its day to day operations.

Trade receivables

The Company extends eredits to costomer in normal course of the business, The Company considers the factors such as credit track record in the market of each customer and past
dealings for extension of credit 10 the customer. The Company monitors the payment teack record of each customer and outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respeer to trade reccivables a5 low, as its customers are |oeated at several jusisdiction and industries and nperate a0 large
independent markets. The Compaay also takes advances and security deposits from customers which mitigate the credit risk to an extent.

The average eredit period taken on sales of goods is 30 to 60 days. Generally, no interest has been charged on the receivables. Allowances against doubtful debts are recognised
aganst teade ceceivables based on estimated icrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s current
financial position,

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uscs an internal credit system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attdbuted
to customers are reviewed periodically. There are no customers who represent more thaa 10 per cent of total net revenue from operations

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over any of its trade reccivables nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Company to the counterparty.

Expected credit Jogs :

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision mateix takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due
and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

X Expected credit
Ageing ploss %)
Not due for payment 0
Up to 6 months 0
From 6 months to 1 year 0
From 1 year to 3 years 10 to 100
Morc than 3 years 100
Aggng of past due trade receivables ® in lakh)
Period As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
"Not due for payment 6,649.43 13,291.12
Up to 6 months 14,205.04 10,854.58
From 6 months to 1 year 1,260.82 1,107.81
From 1 year to 3 years 2,521.91 1,838.84
More than 3 years 2,181.88 1,755.79
Ageing of impaired trade receivables

. As at As at

Feand 31March 2020 31 March 2019
Up to 6 months 2
From 6 months to 1 yeac * -
From 1 year to 3 years 398.74 233.70
More than 3 years 2,181.88 1,755.79

* Based upon lifetime expected credit loss

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Company will have insufficient resources to meet its financial liabilities as they fall due.

The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and
excess operating cash flows to mect its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term cxpansion needs. The Company
monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to casure that it has sufficient cash to meet opcrational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities so that it does not breach borrowing limits.
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Note - 37 Financial instruments and risk review (contd.)

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards non-dervative financial liabilitics into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual marurity date und, where applicable, their effective interest rates.

(% in lakh)
As at 31 March 2020
Particulars not later than later than one later than five
Notes year and not later Total
one year than five years years

Financial liabilities
Borrowings - bank loans Note 17, 22, 24 15,723.86 1,931.96 1,400.00 19,055.82
Currenot payables Note 23, 24 15,594.50 15,594.50)
Non-current payables Notc 18 S 2,252.96 3,596.05 5,849.01
Total 31,318.36 4,184.92 4,996.05 40,499.33

(X in lakh)

As at 31 March 2019
Particulars not later than later than one later than five
Notes one year year and not later years Total
than five years

Financial liabilities
Borrowings - bank loans Note 17, 22, 24 14,898.25 1,575.00 1,925.00 18,398.25
Current payables Note 23, 24 23,410.28 - 23,410.28
Non-current pavables Note 18 - - 2,629.80 2,629.80
Total 38,308.53 1,575.00 4,554.80 44,438.33

Market risk
The Company's activitics expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in forcign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company cnters into a varicty of denvative
financial instruments to manage its cxposure to foreign currency risk, including :

Forward foreign exchange contract to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the export and import of its products.

Currency risk
The Company undertakes various transactions denominated in foreign currencies, consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations ardse. Fxchange rate exposures are managed
within approved policy paramcters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Company transacts business primarily in Indian Rupee, USD, Euro and AED. The Company has obtained forcign currency loans and has foreign currency trade payables and
receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. Certain transactions of the Company act as a natural hedge as a portion of both assets and liabilities are denominated in
similar forcign currencies. For the remaining exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Company adopted a policy of sclective hedging based on risk perception of the management. Forcign
exchange hedging contracts are carried at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monctary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period arc as follows:

(in lakh)

Particulars Curren As at As at

. rency 31March2020 31 March 2019
I'rade receivables usD 11.49 5.42
Tradc payables UsD 0.72 0.05
EUR 0.10 0.49
AED 0.13
As at As at

Currency rate 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD 75.3859 69.1713
EUR 83.0496 77.7024
AED 20.4905 18.9443

Of the above foreign currency exposures, following exposures are not hedged:

(in lakh)
Particul C As at As at
arucutars urrency 31March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade reccivables usD 11.49 5.42
Trade payables Usn 0.72 0.05

~ "\

I"UR A\ 010 0.49

. 1)
ALED o043
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Note - 37 Financial instruments and risk review (contd.)

Sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of profit and cquity in USD, Furo, GBP and ALD to the Indian Rupec with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to changes in the fair value of monctary assets and liabilities is given below:

(X in lakh)

Change in  Effect on profit  Effect on profit
Currency currency before tax before tax
exchange rate 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD 5% 40.59 1857
50 (40.59) (18.57)

EUR 5% 0.42) (1.89)
50, 0.42 1.89

AED 5 ©.14) -
U 0.14 -

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on foreign currency receivables and payables in the Company at the end of cach reporting pedod.
Interest rate risk
‘The Company's exposure to the rsk of changes in market interest rates relates primaily to long term debts. Its objective in managing its interest rate dsk is to ensure that it always

maintain sufficient head room to cover interest payment from anticipated cash flows which is regularly reviewed by the board/nominated committee as well.

The following table demonstrates the seasitivity in the interest rate with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive
income duc to changes in the interest rates is given below :

(X in lakh)

Effect on profit  Effect on profit

Particulars thhan;,:e u: before tax before tax
IRIErestrate 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Long term borrowings from bank 0.50°0 (17.55) (17.50)
-0.50%0 17.55 17.50
Commodity risk

The Company is exposed to the movement in the price of key traded goods in the domestic and international markets. The Company has in place policies to manage exposure to
fluctuation the prices of key traded goods. The Company enter into contracts for procurement of traded goods, most of the transactions are short term fixed price contract and a few
transactions are long term fixed price contracts.

Note 38 - Fair value measurement

Fair valuation techniques and inputs used

Valuation Sienificant Relationship of
. . Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) g unobservable
Financial assets . . unobservable | .
R in lakh) hierarchy and key input(s) inputs to fair value

input(s) and sensitivity

'31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current investments 214.00 22476 1

Other financial instruments
The carrying amount of the financial assets and labilities carried at amortised cost is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

<This spuce has been intentionally left blunk>
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Note 39 - Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all employees. The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the Companies in
funds under the control of trustecs. Where employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the Company are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

"The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund aggregating to ¥ 362.54 lakh (previous year ¥ 299.25 lakh ) has been recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

B. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying cmployees. The bencfit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972 or the Company Scheme applicable to the employec. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to
employces on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes
annual contribution to the group gratuity Scheme administered by the Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited. (Refer note 53).

Details of the Company's defined benefit plans are as follows:

( in lakh)
Funded plan
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current scrvice cost ' 123.07 93.03
Net interest expense/ (income) (0.35) 0.15)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 122,72 92.88
Net actuarial (gain)/loss 16.51 (50.25)
Expected return on plan assets excluding interest income 26.67 (5.39)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 43.18 (55.64)
I. Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 March
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation 557.45 423.54
2.F.  value of plan assets 430.05 41242
3. Deficit 127.40 11.12
4. Current portion of the above 127.40 11.12
I1. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31 March
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 423.54 402.44
the year *
2. Expenses recognised in the statements of profit and loss
- Current service cost 123.07 93.03
- Interest expensc 27.08 28.85
3. Recognised in other comprehensive income
- Actuarial (gain)/loss anising from experience adjustments (39.68) (53.67)
- Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from financial assumption 56.19 3.42
4. Benefit payments (32.75) (50.53)

5. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 557.45 423.54
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® in lakh)
Funded plan
Particulars Grartuity
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
III. Change in fair value of assets
1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year * 412.42 379.11
2. R~ gnised in the statement profit and loss
- Expected return on plan assets 27.43 29.00
3. Recognised in other comprehensive income
- Actual return on plan assets in excess of the expected return (26.67) 5.39
4. Contributions by employer (including bencfit payments recoverable) 49.62 49.45
5. Benefit payments (32.75) (50.53)
6. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 430.05 412.42

IV. The major categories of plan assets

"The Company made annual contribution to the Bitla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited (BSL’) of un amount advised by the BSL. The Company was informed

by BSL that the planned asscts are held in growth/ fixed interest bonds.

V. Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1. Discount rate 6.65% 7.65%
2. Expected rate of increase in compensation level 6.50% 6.50%
3. Expected rate of return on plan asscts 6.65% 7.65%
4. Attrition rate 1.00% 1.00%
5. Mortality table TALM 2006-08 TALM 2006-08
6. Superannuation age 58 58
VI. Sensitivity analysis
(¥ in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Change in Effect on Change in Effect on gratuity
assumption gratuity assumption obligation
obligation
Discount rate 0.50% (30.73) 0.50% (23.30)
-0.50% 33.59 -0.50% 25.42
Expected rate of increase in compensation level 0.50% 31.69 0.50% 23.90
-0.50% (29.29) -0.50% (22.03)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes
in some of the assumptions may be corelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
mett, d (projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised within the balance sheet.

VII. Experience adjustments : ® in lakh)
FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
1. Defined benefit obligation 557.45 423.54
2. Fair value of plan assets 430.05 412.42
3. Surplus/(dcficit) (127.40) (11.12)
4. Expericnce adjustment on plan liabilities gain/(loss) 39.68 53.67

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of

obligation.

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employment market.

* For opening as on 1st April, 2018 transfer pursuant to Scheme of arrangement (Refer note 47 & 53)




Brilloca Limited
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

C. Other long-term benefits - Compenaated absences (unfunded)
(T in lakh)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Non current (Refer note 19) 321.06 290.01
Current (Refer note 27) 17.60 15.20
338.66 305.21

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 102.87 85.88
Interest cost 23.35 17.41
Actuarial loss (1.76) 9.90
Total included in employee benefits expense 12446 113.19

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of benefit obligations

Change in benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year* 30521 225.77

Interest cost 23.35 17.41

Current service cost 102.87 85.88
Benefits paid 91.01) (33.75)
Actuarial loss (1.76) 9.90
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 338.66 305.21

The average duration of remaining working life at the end of the reporting period is 17.05 years (Previous year 17.41 years)
* For opening as on 1st April, 2018 transfer pursuant to Scheme of arrangement (Refer note 47)
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Brillnea Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year

ended 31 March 2020

Nc* - 40 - Segment Information

The Company operates in a single segment i.e. Building Products, therefore segment reporting is applicahle

Note 41 - Earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31March2020 31 March 2019

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to ownets of the Company (T in lakh) 4,033.44 7,377.60
Weighted average number of equity shares (nos.) 500,000 500,000
Nominal value per share (%) 2.00 2.00
Earnings per shate - basic and diluted () 806.69 1,475.52

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earnings per share of the

Corrpany remain the same.

Note - 42 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of: ® in lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2) Demands made by the sales tax authorities against which appeals have been filed 553.94 610.77
b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 55.16 -
Note - 43 Capital and other commitments ® in lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31 Match 2020 31 Mazrch 2019
a) Commitments relating to contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and other 173.87 17133
commitments not provided for ' '
Note - 44 Payment to statutory auditors (excluding goods and service tax) ® in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As auditors 8.00 0.40
For taxation matters 2.00 -
Other services 3.25 -
Fort reimbursement of expenses - -

13.25 0.40

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policics and othcr explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for (he year ended 31

Note 45 - Related party transactions
In accordance with the requirement of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related Party Disclosures” name of the related party, related party
rclationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exist and with whom trusactions have taken place during the

reportted period are as follows:

List of related parties

Relationship
Key management personnel (KMP)

Latities where significant influence is exercised by KMP and/or
their relatives having transactions with the Company

Holding company

Subsidiarics

Name of related party (as identified by the management)
Executive directors
Mr. Sandip Somany (Chairman & Managing Director)

Executives / Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sandeep Sikka (CFO) (With effect from 10th February 2020)
Ms Payal M Puri (CS) (With cffect from 10th February 2020)

Non-executive directors

Mr. G.1.. Sultania

Mz Ashok Jaipuria (w.c.[ 12-Nov-19)

Mr. Salil Bhandan (w.c.f. 12-Nov-19)

Dr. Rainer Siegfried Simon (w.c.f. 12-Nov-19)
Mr. N.K. Goenka

Ms. Alpana Parida (w.c.f. 27-Mar-20)

Textool Mercantile Private Limited

Somany Home Innovation Limited

Ialis International Limited, Mauritius

Alchemy International Cooperaticf U.A. (subsidiary of Halis International Limited)
[aas International B.V. (subsidiary of Alchemy International Cooperatief U.AL)
Queo Bathroom Innovations Limited, UK (subsidiary of [laas Intemational B.V.)
Fellow Subsidiaries Hintastica private limited (Subsidiary of Somany Home Innovation Limited)
(Incorporated on 14-nov-2019)
Post employment benefit plan Somany Provident Fund Insttuton
"The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.
(T in lakh)
Holding /Subsidiary/fellow subsidiary Entities where significant influence is

exercised by KMP and/or their relatives
having transactions with the Company

Particulars

Transactions during the year 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Investment made
-Equity component in redeemable preference shares of Halis 64.36 = -

Intemational Limited

Received for Management support services

Somany Home Innovation Limited 15.72 529.68 - =

Rent paid

8.40 - . _
Textool Mercantile Private Limited : -

Somany Home Innovation Limited

Rent received

Hintatstica Pdvate limited 0.50 . . _

Common expenses received from

Somany Home Innovation Limited = 26.57 - _

Contribution made

Somany provident fund institution 78.90 _

Balances outstanding as at the end of the year-Receivable
Somany [Home Innovation Limited 556.25

Accrued/Receivable (11P1.)

Balances outstanding as at the end of the year-Payable

Textool Mercantile Private Limited = 0.21




Brilloca Limited

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year

ended 31 March 2020

Note 45 - Related party transactions (Contd.)

In accordance with the requirement of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related Party Disclosures” name of the related party,
related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exist and with whom transactinns

have taken place during the reported period arce as follows:

® in lakh)

Particulars

Key management personnel and
their relatives

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Transactions during the year
Remuneration of key management personnel
Mr. Sandip Somany 140.63 -
Mr. Sandeep Sikka 28.00 -
Commission and other payments to non exccutive directors 60.44 -
Remuneration payable
Mzr. Sandip Somany 12.42 -
Mr. Sandeep Sikka 9.18 -
Commission and other payments to non executive directors 59.94 -
(X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term employce benefits # 214.73
Post-cmployment benefits

- Defined contribution plan $ 14.34 -

- Defined benefit plan * - -

- Other long-term benefits * - -
Rent paid - -
Total 229.07 -

# Including bonus, sitting fee, commission on accrual basis and valuc of perquisites.
S including provident fund, leave encashment paid and any other benefit.

*

to key manageral personncel are not included above.

As the liability for gratuity and leave encashment arc provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, amounts accrued pertaining

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V, part A, Clause 2(2A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

Promoter/promoter group companies holding more than 10% of equity share capital of the Company:

HSIL Limited (R in lakh)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Nature of transaction
1. Purchasc of Sanitaryware, fauccet, pipe and other products 58,928.52 56,042.27
2. Management support services received 115.00 209.00
3. Management support scrvices provided 1,977.74 899.00
4. Rent paid 745.31 893.00
5. Reimbursement of expenses received 0.87 104.00
Balances outstanding as at the end of the year
Payable outstanding 735.58 13.46




Brilloca Limited

Sigpificant accounting policics and other cxplanatory information to the Standalonc financial statcments as at and for the year
cnded 31 Marcch 2020

Note 46 Adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019
using the modified retrospective method. Consequently, the company tccorded the lease liability at the present value of the future lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policics
included as part of our Annual Report for year ended Match 31, 2020.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
For operating leascs, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020

R in lakh)
Pariiculars Amount
| Current leasc liabilities 417.78
Non current lease liabilities 2,432.41
Total 2,850.19
The following is the movement in lease liabilitics during the year ended March 31, 2020:
Particulars Amount
Balance at the beginning B
Addition 3,205.79
Finance cost accrued during the period 224.99
Deletions -
Payment of lease liabilities 580.59
Balance at the end 2,850.19
"The rable below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis:
Particulars Amount
Less than one ycar 626.38
One to five years 2,252.96
Mote than five years 798.67
Total 3,678.01

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was T 963.14 lakh for the year ended March 31,2020

<This space has been intentionally left blank>__
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

No-..: 47 Scheme of arrangement:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Brilloca Limited ("Company") in its meeting held on 10th November 2017 had approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(the "Schemc’) under section 230 to 232, read with section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the provisions of other applicable
laws, amongst the Company ("Brilloca Limited"), Somany Home Innovation Limited (SHIL) (100% holding company of the Company) and HSIL Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors. The Scheme provided for the demerger of, (i) the Consumer Products Distribution and Marketing Undertaking ("CPDM
Undertaking”) and Retail Undertaking of the HSIL Limited into SHIL, and (i) the Building Products Distribution and Marketing Undertaking ("BPDM
Undertaking") of HSIL Limited into Brilloca Limited. The Scheme was approved by the Hon'ble Kolkata Bench of National Company Law Tribunal vide its order
dated 26th June 2019, certified copy of the order dated 22nd July 2019 was filed with Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on 5th August 2019 and accordingly the
Scheme came into effect. The Scheme was effective from the Appointed Date ie. 1st April, 2018. The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2019 were approved by shareholders in its Annual General Meeting held on 2nd September 2019 and subsequently to give effect of the Scheme,
the comparative financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 have been restated. The effects of the Scheme has been incorporated in this restated
Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019.

The restated financials statements are to be approved by shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting,

(b) As stated above, the aforesaid Scheme of the Company was with HSIL Limited, 100% holding company of SHIL (pre Scheme) and SHIL holds 100% shares in
the Company. To give effect of the Scheme from Appointed Date i.e. 1st April 2018 and pursvant to the requirements of Ind AS 103 "Business Combination”, the
Company has accounted this Business Combination involving entities under common control using the pooling of interest method in the financial results, for prior
period i.c. with effect from 1st April 2018 as per Ind AS -103.

(¢ ) The nccessary steps and formalities in respect of completion of transfers of properties, licences, approvals and investments in favour of Brilloca Limited
pursuant to the Scheme are under process.

<This space bas been intentionally lefi blank>




(d) Pursuant to the Scheme, the following assets and liabilities wete taken over by the Company as on 1st April, 2018 (Appointed date)

Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2018

(¥ in lakh)
Particulars As at 1st April 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Propetty, plant and equipment 3,045.14
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3,381.55
() Goodwill E
(d) Other intangible assets 160.30
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments * 40.20
(ii) Loans 158.57
(iif) Other financial assets =
(f) Income-tax assets (net) =
(g) Other non-current assets 899.58
Total non-current assets 7,685.35
Current assets
(a) Inventories 18,782.88
(b) Financial assets
() Investments -
(i1} Trade receivables 20,842.61
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 5,425.21
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above -
(v) Loans -
(vi) Other financial assets =
(c) Other current assets 2,852.70
Total current assets 47,903.40
™ Total assets 55,588.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Share Suspense
(c) Other equity 10,169.23
Total equity 10,169.23
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 3,500.00
(i) Other financial liabilities 2,924.19
(b) Provisions 403.28
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) (418.05)
(d) Other non-current liabilities 74.29
Total non-current liabilities 6,483.71
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings 25,648.30
(1) Trade payables 4,235.18
(iii) Other financial liabilities 8,511.60
(b) Other current liabilities 364.55
(c) Provisions 176.18
Total current liabilities 38,935.81
Total liabilities 45,419.52
Total equity and liabilities 55,588.75

* [nvestments represent investment in wholly owned subsidiaries transferred pursuant to scheme of arrangement.
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2020

Note 48 Corporate Social Responsibility:

‘The Company is not required to spend on corporate social responsibility (CSR) as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Note 49 - Financial instrument by category

R in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
FVOCI FVTPL Amortised FVOCl1 FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Non current financial assets
Investments - 75.34 - 75.34
Loans - - 318.14 - - 24512
Other financial assets - 5 = - S -
Current financial assets
Investments - 8.31 - 8.23 =
Trade receivable - - 24,238.46 - 26,858.65
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 174.29 - - 1,243.35
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - 5
Other financial assets - . 1,560.23 - 10,324.43
Total financial assets - 8.31 26,366.46 - 8.23 38,746.89
Nc. Current financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings = - 3,331.96 - - 3,500.00
Other financial liabilities - - 5,229.79 - - 2,629.80
Current financial liabilities
Current borrowings - - 15,545.82 - 14,898.25
Trade payables - = 4,624.20 - - 13,545.12
Other financial liabilities - - 10,939.74 = - 9,865.16
Total financial liabilities - - 39,671.51 - - 44,438.33

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the Standalone financial statements as at and
for (he year ended 31 March 2020

Note 50 - Disclosure under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

(R in lakh)
Particulars Halis International Halis International
Limited, Mauritius Limited, Mauritius
(Wholly owned (Wholly owned
subsidiary) subsidiary)

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Guarantee )

Guarantees given as at the beginning of the financial year - -
Guarantees given during the financial year - -
Guarantee closed during the year = .
“‘uatantees given as at the end of the financial ycar - -

Investments

Investments at the beginning of the financial year 75.22 -
Transfer under the Scheme of arrangement (Refer note 47) - 40.08
Additions during the financial yeatr - 64.37
Provision for diminution in the value of during the year - (29.23)
Investment at the end of the financial year 75.22 75.22

Loans and advances

Loans at the beginning of the financial yeat - -
Additions during the financial year - -
?oturn back during the year - .
Loans at the end of the financial year - -




ZOf oun puzg @ aeq
Z.Q\%A ANY N 2o

89091 “ON SOV §G168 ON'W
£re)2399g Avedwon) DUITE]
ung "W edeg TYPOT AN
\/\ .\\. ,_‘....lx..u
L6S€S000 -NId 1€609000 :NIQ HISOL0% 0N UonENSIZaY Win]

¥012931(] SW3eULIy PUL UBWITEYD) 9OTA J013(T SIUBIUNODDY PIITey)
0D 7B BYpOT 304
$10)9211I(] JO PIeog 31 JO Jjeyaq UO Pue I0J “payoenre odar 1o jJo swid uy

“UOHEIISSE]D §, 3824 JUDIIND IT 0] WD 0 AILSSIDIV PIIIPISUOD I2AIdYM Pagueare-o3/ padnoifas uaaq davy samn3y ponad snowmoaI - 6§ AON

‘preog oup £q pasodozd st puoptamp
2oy oN ‘pred sea (orgm A7nIqa, Q] U0 PRY SUNodWw SI0105TI( JO PILOF A UF OZ-6 10T Fed4 [PIUTUY 10§ 1O 7 » dn[ea 95€] Jo d3eys Ambo 30d 00g 2 JO PUIPIATP WAL UL PIIEPIP PEY pIEOg AT,
puapIAl( - 5 J1ON

(TISH) Avedwo?) sozaysuen pue uedwor) o1 jo JuowsFruew a1 39d SE SOILWNS? JO SISEq A VO SVOP U] SEY BIO[[H PUL PIIWFT UORLAOUT]
swor {urwog o1 sarsedwos Fun[nsar put 3039suLn FUOWE $198sE pUNy Jo UoNYIO[L kUl Jurpuad 32A0MOT TONEN[EA [ELEMIE I} UO Pastq popraosd U92q sey OzZOg YoFews IS¢ Uo st Arqer Amieso
uonenyes QINIeI) - ¢§ AJON

‘Buryg /uotssrwqns
[PIOURUY 3933¥ SJUSWIS [EDURUY 1940 10edinr [puayews AUt 0q JOU [[IA 213U T $2A0F2q JuSWwdFeULW O1[], SoRBoyINE 0IEls pim July Jo $s9303d 39pun st 61-810T A 30 1SD JO UIMI3 PNUGL 9YT,
S10N LSO - TS 210N

o) Suo] U1 preasoy SwoF UTEISS [AN SOUTIQEY PUE SIOSSE ONUDADI 23N ‘SA0[) ysed ‘suonesado ssoursng o1 e $309dxa Auedwio)) ‘sIap[oyaxLls RO pUE szorddns ‘szowoisnd
31 s [paspood 29 sdiysuoneppx Surpuers-Juof ‘9feun pursq ‘ofoyisod 1onpoxd Amenb s Auedwod pue omeusds JxFew JusnInd Funaprsuo)) “Apandadsord poziug0da3 5q [ 0Z0T YPFEN ISIE UO ST Kuedwor)
TP JO SONIIQErT 79 S19SSY O 01 SuPEPI PUT dYEp IS ADUE[Eq O I JuBIND00 puE AUt JI SMWIPUL] 61-QIAQD JO o Fudsown sjuswdopadp 9 s1uase oxmny Aue Jo edws YT, 00T PN ISIE
6O st 188y S1 JO JunOWE FurhITEd 3940303 01 5199dx0 Auedwon) JY STONIPUOD INWOUOA DIMIY JO SIOJLIPUL JVITID O Paseg ‘070 UPFEIN ISTE 1t ¢ SOMIIQUT 2 S19sSY SI Jo onfea Surdizes vo jordwi 3y
pue srwspued 61-(TIAQ?D) WO3j SUISITE S2OULISWNOID 29 STUGAD [eHdyews AP o[qrssod JUIX0 9y 0 UI POI0IDL] PUL PRJen[ead ‘SYUaWwless [erutuy jo [aosdde Jo syep o o) dn sey Auedwo)) oy, “pauressoose
{jqeuoseas aq JoUUEd APUDKITL YITYA ‘sassoursng uo Jordury sy 29 A1maass 07 192dsox AL sonuEITadUN Sunsed] suondnIsip JMWOT02S prardsopia [eqoj3 PasnEDd SEY JMWRPUE] G1-IAQD JO FLdIQIN0 YT,

61-P1a0D Jo 1oedwy - [ AON

0202 U2IeJ\ [¢ PAPUS Jea4 5() 10] PUE 1€ SE SJUSI)E)S [E[OUEUY JUOEPURIS 91 0} Uoneuwojul Aroyeur(dxs 1a1po pue sapiod Sununodoe Juedyrudig
P OOHY



